Brunary Wyżne was founded under German law by the charter of King Casimir III the Great given to Daniel Jaszek in 1335. The village received another charter (this time under Vlach law) in 1547 – the document was issued by Bishop Samuel Maciejowski and given to Daniel Jaśkowski (descendant of Daniel Jaszek). In 1641, Jakub Zadzik, Bishop of Kraków, confirmed the charter and approved Maciej Bodniewicz as the presbyter of the Greek Catholic church in Brunary, allowing him to keep the vicarage and adding Greek Catholic churches in Piorunka and Czarna to the parish in Brunary. In 1647, the church is mentioned in the decree of the Starost of Muszyna, Wojciech Bedleński, settling a dispute between peasants and the parish priest. In the 1930s, the archives of the parish church possessed records kept since 1711. The church served Greek Catholics until 1947, when the local population was displaced to northern and western Poland under Operation Vistula. In 1951, the temple was taken over by the Roman Catholic parish of the Assumption of Virgin Mary in Brunary.

The current temple was built in the 18th century, replacing the older building. It is a wooden, log construction, facing east. It is a West-Lemko church with a post-and-beam bell tower in the western part of the building. The temple’s current shape is the result of a thorough reconstruction that took place in 1830-1831. The Cyrillic inscription on the western wall of the sanctuary, above the portal of the Royal Doors, reads: "THIS HOUSE OF GOD IN THIS YEAR 1830, DURING THE REIGN OF THE MOST BENEVOLENT, GOD’S FAVORITE, HIS MAJESTY EMPEROR FRANCIS I: THE PIOUS UNIVERSAL SERVANT OF ARCHBISHOP PIUS VIII – THE SUPREME PONTIFF /.../” The temple was then extended. Although in general it has kept its characteristic three-part, axial arrangement, its silhouette stands out among other churches in the region. It has a horizontally elongated mass which is, however, highlighted by three prominent Baroque domes with a smooth gradation of height (ascending to the west), set on hipped roofs with low recesses. The finial consists of blacksmith's crosses. The roof slopes above the sanctuary and the nave, as well as the tower walls, are covered with shingles. Its belfry and the so-called zachata at the base and all walls of the church are covered with vertical planks. The dome on the tower is covered with sheet metal. The main entrance to the building (from the west) leads through a small vestibule-porch. The northern and southern side elevations of the temple have five windows each, while the eastern elevation has one window. All [windows are] rectangular, arched, and multi-sectional. The windows in the walls of the older part of the temple were extended in 1830. The nave is the most extensive part of the church – when the building was expanded, an 18th-century sanctuary was added to the nave (the height of the wall framework was then leveled with the nave). This main body was expanded with a slightly lower, elongated sanctuary, which houses the sacristy (with a separate entrance from the south) in the eastern part enclosed on three sides. Inside, the sanctuary is separated from the sacristy by a simple, log wall with a portal. By the western wall of the matroneum, there is a choir supported by a pair of massive columns, decorated with a sculptural motif of a grapevine. An important structural change made during the expansion of the temple included the replacement of log vaults above the main rooms with flat board ceilings, with coving at the base. The rich interior of the temple includes monuments from the 17th – early 20th centuries, such as an iconostasis, prestol (‘the throne’), side altars – kiots (icon cases), a pulpit, wall paintings, icons, liturgical vessels and equipment. The church grounds are surrounded by a wall of wild stone with two vaulted gates with shingled roofs on the west side.

The preserved wall polychrome inside the temple dates from the late 18th century (the nave walls). After 1830, the polychrome was continued in a similar style on the walls of the old and added sanctuaries, as well as the ceilings. In 1898, the renovation of the temple involved the restoration of the existing wall paintings and the addition of some stencil decorations in the upper parts of the nave and in the matroneum and vestibule (porch). The polychrome – made using the tempera grassa and glue-size techniques – creates decorative, trompe-l'œil architectural divisions on the walls, a crowning frieze and ceilings. The wall surfaces are divided by pilasters supporting the entablature, standing on a pedestal. In the nave, the architrave is filled with chiaroscuro-based trussing made of horizontally composed, colorful rhombuses with drapes. Above the architrave, there is a frieze with palette and wave motifs. Between the pilasters, there are large colorful rhombi with flower bouquets in the middle. Below the window base, there are consecration crosses and silhouettes of cherubs within ornamental decorations. In the original sanctuary, the oldest layer has been preserved in the architectural divisions on the walls and the crowning frieze. Both in the original and the added sanctuary, the wall surfaces are alternately divided by semi-columns and pilasters. Above the pilasters' heads, there is a crowning frieze with a pelmet motif and Ionic cymatium. The aesthetics of the rich ornamentation is late-Baroque and Régence-like in tone. In 1898, stencil ornamental stripes were added to the paintings in all spaces. On the ceiling of the nave, there are seven rosettes of different size on a blue background, with floral and geometric ornaments, with the biggest rosette located in the center. On the sanctuary’s ceiling, you can see "The Eye of Providence" in radiant glory on a blue, star-stained background, surrounded by four cherubs and the sun (symbol of the New Covenant) and the moon (symbol of the Old Covenant). The creator of the oldest part of the wall paintings of the church in Brunary used similar methods when decorating the interior of the churches in Śnietnica (a preserved polychrome) and Uście Gorlickie (a polychrome known from an archival photography, covered with another layer in 1938).

The iconostasis, set on the border of the sanctuary and the part of the temple intended for the faithful, was made in the first half of the 18th century and is one of the best painting works created in the churches of the western part of the Przemyśl diocese at that time (its creator also made the Deacons’ Doors of the iconostasis for the church in nearby Śnietnica). The iconostasis of the church in Brunary has a frame, multi-zone structure, with predellas at the base, an axial composition, and a rich woodcarving division of the plane; it is chronologically and stylistically homogeneous (except for the Royal Doors and paintings in the figural predellas, all made at the end of the 19th century). The inscriptions carried by individual icons are written in the Church Slavonic language, with the exception of icons in the row of Old Testament Prophets where fragments of prophecies are written in Latin. The artistic divisions in individual rows of the partition have an architectural form and correspond to each other. There is a decorative (full and openwork) woodcarving detail with Baroque forms and black polychrome woodcarving frame, gilded and silvered, colored in places using a laser. The elevated, broken entablature over the embrasured arch, above the Royal Doors and the central icon of the Deesis cycle (prayer to the Christ in Majesty said by the people through the intercession of the Theotokos, St. John the Baptist, and the Apostles) highlights the vertical axis of the partition. There are continuous horizontal cornices between individual rows with brackets above the columns. Embrasured painting niches, decorated with woodcarving, are flanked by columns decorated with a carved motif of a vine branch. A row of prazdniki (icons of Great Feasts) is divided in the center by a pair of consoles flanking an arcade with the image of Christ in the Tomb. The painting is covered with another (mobile) one on a wooden canvas, in the form of a tri-leaf, in an openwork woodcarving frame, with the image of Mandylion (the face of Jesus on a veil). On its side, we can see prazdniki (six on each side) in oval cartouches, in a similar woodcarving frame. Woodcarving detail is applied to the frame, gold-plated; in the form of a plant-based ornament, friezes, cartouches, and palmette; gold-plated and silver-plated. The predellas are rectangular, flat, divided into panels with silver and gold strips. The trims of the Royal and Deacons’ Doors are topped with an arch. The row of Prophets is formed by oval cartouches in an openwork woodcarving frame that flanks the Crucifixion. Eighteenth-century icons are made with tempera and tempera grassa on wooden canvases, on a chalk and glue primer. Sovereign (lower row) icons and three internal (Deesis row) icons have a relief, gilded background. The paintings in predellas and in the Royal Doors’ medallions were made using the oil painting technique. The row of sovereign icons is composed of semi-length images: Virgin Mary with the Child – Hodegetria, Christ Pantocrator, Saint Nicholas (north side) and the icon of the Patronal Saint (the saint to which the church is dedicated) of Michael the Archangel (south side). Openwork Royal Doors (a plant-based motif) are topped with an openwork mitre, gilded and polychromed in light gray, with depictions (busts) of Evangelists in four oval medallions. A pair of equal-sized Deacons’ Doors, made of full rectangular planks with sawed upper corners, contain images of the Priests of the Old Covenant: Melchizedek (north side) and Aaron (south side), full-length figures in priestly robes. Melchizedek is holding a tray on his left forearm. On the tray, there are some loaves of bread and a pitcher of wine; in Aaron’s right hand, there is a censer. There are monochrome, dark backgrounds. The row of icons of Great Feasts contains (from the north side): the Nativity of the Blessed Virgin Mary, Entry of the Most Holy Theotokos into the Temple, Annunciation to the Blessed Virgin Mary, Christmas, Presentation of Jesus at the Temple, Dormition of the Mother of God, Transfiguration of Jesus, Epiphany (Baptism of Christ), Triumphal Entry into Jerusalem, Resurrection of Jesus, Ascension of Jesus Christ, and Pentecost. Above the prazdiniki, there is an Apostolic Deesis with a separate, central image of Christ Pantocrator on the throne, dressed in a priestly robe, with the main advocates – the Mother of God and Saint John the Baptist – on the sides. There are six icons of pairs of Apostles depicted in full length on a landscape background. The figures are facing each other or Christ Pantocrator on the throne. In the middle, in the finial of the iconostasis, we can see the Crucifixion painted on a board – a silhouette of Christ being nailed to the cross with three horizontal crossbars; woodcarving, openwork framing. The row of Old Testament Prophets and Patriarchs is composed of six icons in woodcarving openwork frames. Each icon depicts the busts of two figures (3/4 profile), with unrolled scrolls with the texts of prophecies and names of the Prophets. In the predellas are the paintings of (from the north): Saints Cyril and Methodius – Apostles to the Slavs, Binding of Isaac, Saint Vladimir the Great and Grand Duchess Olga, as well as the Samaritan Woman at the Well.

The basic equipment of the church (contemporary with the iconostasis) includes the altar (“mensa” with a retable, used in the first part of the Liturgy – Preparation of Gifts). Originally, it was set by the northern wall of the sanctuary, but currently it is located on the northern side of the nave area, next to the pulpit. On a simple mensa, there is a retable – in its base, we find a rectangular icon case. Its door shows a picture of the Mystical Body of Christ. He is wearing a white perizoma, carrying a cross on his shoulder, and standing in a golden cup. There are streams of blood running from his wounds. The retable (polychrome painted in red and black) is architectural, with an axial composition, richly decorated with openwork and full woodcarving, rococo-style forms, gilded and silvered, and colored in some places using a laser. In the base, on the sides of the icon case, there are four oval holes of the boxes. There is an arcaded painting niche, heavily embrasured, filled with an openwork ornament in the shape of a grapevine with clusters, depicting a small icon of the Lamentation of Christ – Pieta. The Virgin Mary is cradling the dead body of her Son resting on her knees, against a landscape background. At the top of the arcade is a silvered sculpture of a turtledove – a symbol of the Holy Spirit, in radiant, gilded glory.

The same woodcarving and painting workshop that made the iconostasis and the altar made the pulpit which is suspended on the northern wall of the former sanctuary (now the nave area), accessible by one flight of stairs with a full balustrade. The body of the lectern is in the form of a prism, with a profiled sill and base, and a full balustrade, divided with columns in the corners. In the arcaded spaces between the columns, there are three large icons of the Three Holy Hierarchs – creators of the Liturgy: John Chrysostom, Basil the Great, and Gregory the Theologian, portrayed in full length, wearing liturgical garments. There is a canopy constructed on the same plan as the body, with a profiled cornice, topped with an openwork closed crown. On its intrados, there is an image of a dove in glory – symbol of the Holy Spirit.

The biggest of the altars, built shortly after the church had been reconstructed, is set by the northern wall of the nave. It holds the oldest of the icons preserved in the church in Brunary – the Theotokos Hodegetria, painted in the mid-17th century. Originally, it probably served as an altar situated behind the throne (zaprestolny), located on the axis of the eastern wall of the sanctuary. It is polychromed (blue, with light-ochre marble in cornices and paneling on the mensa) and has an axial composition and rich artistic divisions. There are elements of architectural arrangements and gilded and silver-plated woodcarving detail in Baroque forms. The Icon of the Theotokos Hodegetria – Virgin Mary with the Child Jesus, was made with tempera on a wooden board with a gilded, engraved background. Mary is portrayed half length, with Jesus on her left arm, pointing with her right hand to her Son. In the corner of the painting, there is a small kneeling figure of a girl – it might be a daughter of the painting’s founder, (Joan?) Krynicki, (inscription on the panel edging of the icon). In the finial of the retable, we can see radiant glory with an oval icon of the Eye of Providence.

Hodegetria paintings are one of the most common depictions of Madonna and Child. The Mother of God faces forward, shown in half or full length (sitting on the throne or standing). Her head slightly inclines towards the Child Jesus, who usually resides on his Mother’s left shoulder (John 14:6). She presents the Savior with a solemn gesture of her left hand. He raises his right hand in a blessing gesture, while holding a scroll in his left hand (from the 17th century, it could also be a book or a sphere). There are numerous iconographic variants of this depiction, which show different details (including depictions with the Child Jesus on the right arm). According to tradition, the first image of Hodegetria was painted by Saint Luke the Evangelist, then offered to St. Theophilus together with the Gospel. Following Theophilus’ death, the icon returned from Antioch to Jerusalem, where it was found by Empress Aelia Eudocia in the 5th century. The painting was taken to Constantinople and placed in the Ton Hodigon monastery church. Hence, the name of the painting, which, over time, due to its consonance with the Greek word for ‘road’, has taken on some new content: ‘she who leads’, ‘the one leading to the road’. In Byzantium, Luke’s icon of the Theotokos Hodegetria was known for many miracles, became the palladium of the empire, survived the period of iconoclasm in hiding, and was destroyed by the Turks after the fall of Constantinople in 1453. The iconographic archetype is alive thanks to numerous copies of this image.

The opposite, southern, wall of the nave holds a no less interesting, large icon expressing the idea of the Protection and the Intercession of the Theotokos (Pokrov), made in the late 17th century. This iconographic variant is sometimes referred to as the Guardian of the Suffering. The image was painted using the tempera grassa technique on canvas (partly painted over the form). In the center of the painting we can see the Virgin Mary, in full length and en face. She is holding a veil in her outstretched arms – it symbolizes the protection of those in need, including church leaders, monks, nuns, monarchs, and a large group of lay people. They are dressed in ceremonial robes or other attire appropriate for their position. Several large-format icons of this type from the 2nd half of the 17th century have survived to this day – mainly in museum collections. A similar icon, known from archival photos, was once hung in the Church of St. Paraskeva, in nearby Uście Gorlickie.

The most important elements of the sanctuary (the space behind the iconostasis) of every Greek Catholic church include the prestol (“throne”), an icon case, and an antimins. In the middle of the sanctuary, there is a main altar mensa – the prestol, a symbolic grave that is a reference to the early Christian tradition. In the corners of its tabletop, we can find relics. Around the prestol, there must be an ambulatory. The icon case (or kiot; with a similar liturgical function as the Roman Catholic tabernacle) set on the mensa – a figure of the Old Testament Ark of the Covenant – is used to store transubstantiated Eucharistic elements for the sick and to celebrate the Liturgy of the Presanctified Gifts. The prestol is covered with a linen antimins with relics sewn in, usually decorated with a painted or graphic image of Christ in the Tomb. It is consecrated by the bishop and dedicated individually to each altar where bread and wine are transubstantiated. A prominent place on the prestol is occupied by a seven-branch candlestick – a sign of the Gifts of the Holy Spirit, and by a richly bound book of the Gospel.

The main altar mensa of the church in Brunary – the prestol with a ciborium (a canopy supported by columns) – built shortly after the expansion of the temple – is wooden, with architectural and woodcarving decorations following the aesthetics of the late Baroque and French Regency. The wooden icon case (kiot) located in the center of the mensa was made at the turn of the 19th and 20th centuries. It is shaped like the church, made on a square plan, with small, octagonal avant-corpses in the corners, with a finial in the form of an eight-slope dome. All the surfaces and the woodcarving detail are gilded and silvered. On the walls and doors are oil paintings on metal, in a profiled, gilded frame: Christ blessing the Sacrificial Gifts, Burial of Jesus – Lamentation of Christ, Women Bringing Spices to the Tomb, and the Resurrection.
